
 

Request For Proposals 
Development of a Public Awareness Campaign for  

Early Childhood Literacy Initiative 

Submission Deadline:  
October 27, 2022 by 5 p.m. via email at kerenda.applebey@berrienresa.org  
 
Required Virtual Pre-Bid Meeting  - October 12, 2022, 11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 
Video call link: https://meet.google.com/zah-xnwp-wiq or dial: (US) +1 929-266-1683 

#329 514 733PIN:  

For Questions, Contact:  
Kerenda Applebey, Berrien RESA Director of Early Childhood Education, at 
kerenda.applebey@berrienresa.org 

 

The Region #8 – Early Literacy Hub (R#8-ELH) comprises 7 counties in southern 
Michigan (Berrien, Branch, Calhoun, Cass, Kalamazoo, St. Joseph, and Van Buren).  
This collaborative group was recently awarded a Birth to Five Literacy Support Network 
Hubs Competitive Grant offered through the State of Michigan and Federal Preschool 
Development Funds. The purpose of this grant is to strengthen early childhood literacy 
skills so that children are developmentally ready to succeed in school by the time they 
begin their educational journey and to be proficient readers by the end of third grade. To 
achieve these goals, R#8-ELH is seeking proposals for the development of a public 
awareness campaign that will increase the awareness of the importance of early 
childhood literacy skill development of parents/guardians for children (ages birth 
to 5 years of age) by 20 percent across Region 8. This grant funded project will 
include a multimedia approach as well as need to be customized to support audience 
preferences across 7 counties. The campaign will launch in the spring of 2023 and run 
through August of 2023. At the end of the timeframe, R#8-ELH would assume 
management of the campaign and will maintain ownership of all collateral materials for 
future use. 

Project Overview: 

mailto:kerenda.applebey@berrienresa.org
https://meet.google.com/zah-xnwp-wiq
mailto:kerenda.applebey@berrienresa.org


● This is a grant-funded project. The budget for the campaign, including all 
advertising, materials and other needs is $85,000-$110,000. 

● The awareness campaign will run from March 2023-September 2023. (Agency to 
develop the campaign, create materials, provide analytics, manage ad/social 
media placement and make adjustments to the campaign to ensure optimal 
return on investment.) 

● Once the timeline has ended, the campaign should easily be transferred to R#8-
ELH for ongoing management. R#8-ELH will maintain all ownership rights of all 
materials, copy and design concepts created for the campaign so that they may 
be used in the future.  

● The R#8-ELH may need to call upon the agency for information to support grant 
reporting obligations. 

● Existing collateral may be available to use that can supplement the campaign 
(Talking is Teaching).  

● Some materials will need to be developed in multiple languages and shared with 
appropriate audiences (Arabic, English and Spanish). 

● Materials will need to be as timeless as possible, in that they can be used for the 
next three to five years. 

● In addition to raising awareness, a call to action should be incorporated for 
families to learn more about early literacy. Websites in each county already exist 
for this purpose (ISD/RESA websites), however, additional analytic tools may 
need to be added to those sites to measure traffic specifically directed by the 
awareness campaign. 

RFP Deliverables: 
Please describe how your agency would approach the following: 

1. Describe how your agency approaches project work:  
a. Outline your agency’s project management steps (from pitch to final 

approval) 
b. Who will be responsible for project management (assigned client 

manager, team approach, representative per platform, etc.) 
c. Research - What research services are provided when establishing key 

messages/framing/delivery/platforms/frequency with target audiences. 
Describe how you determine the most appropriate ad placement (e.g. gas 
station videos, Spotify commercials, Instagram Reels, Facebook ads)?  

d. Planning - When designing collateral elements, writing copy, determining 
ad placement, etc., what steps will be taken to ensure options are within 
budget and make the greatest impact? 

e. Implementation - How will the client be made aware of activities that have 
been completed? Will the agency be monitoring for engagement and 
making adjustments to improve performance? 

https://www.talkingisteachingtulsa.com/


f. Evaluation - Will baseline data be collected? Is secondary data needed 
from the client to support campaign development? How will the agency 
measure the success of the campaign? 

2. Has your agency developed awareness campaigns that are customizable based 
on the needs of different geographic locations (with each location having different 
demographics/needs)? If so, please explain. 

3. Describe/share examples of other awareness campaigns/projects that used 
emotion to convey messages. 

4. Describe/share examples of other awareness campaigns/projects that target 
parents/guardians that are typically difficult to reach (due to lack of engagement, 
lack of access to information, lack of access to technology, etc.). 

5. Describe the agency’s approach to bulk media purchasing. Are reports provided 
to demonstrate reach? 

6. The agency will be expected to place and manage social media posts for each of 
the 7 counties related to the campaign. How would your agency manage this 
responsibility? 

7. We anticipate that, in addition to placed ads, there will be a need to provide 
additional posts on each ISD/RESA’s social media sites to support the overall 
campaign. What training and guidance will your agency provide to support this 
process? 

8. If electronic files (video, artwork, social media posts, etc.) needed to be updated 
in the future, would the R#8-ELH group be able to contract with the agency per 
project to meet such needs? 

9. Please share a list of client references. 
10. Please provide a sample timeline for the project, should it be awarded to your 

agency. 

 RFP Timeline  

● Required pre-bid meeting (virtual) - October 12, 2002, 11 a.m. to 12 p.m. 
● RFP due October 27, 2022 by 5:00 p.m. (submit electronically to 

kerenda.applebey@berrienresa.org 
● Top agencies will be invited to present a general campaign concept pitch on 

November 18 (30-minute virtual presentation). Included in the concept pitch 
should be one sample social media post (on a platform of your choosing) aimed 
at supporting campaigns goals. Key messages that should be considered when 
designing the pitch will be shared during the required pre-bid meeting.  

● RFP to be awarded in late November 

Reference Information: 

The purpose of the R#8-ELH is to build, enhance, and connect the work that supports 
early literacy development across the region. The R#8-ELH will enhance and expand 
early childhood learning opportunities and early literacy achievement by providing 
equitable community resources throughout our region to support families and 
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professionals in the development of early literacy skills in children from birth through 
kindergarten. 

The Michigan Department of Education/Office of Great Start has four overarching 
outcomes against which all investments in the early childhood system are assessed. 
This project is designed to specifically address two of those four goals: 

● Goal #3 -Children are developmentally ready to succeed in school at the time of 
school entry 

● Goal #4 -Children are prepared to succeed in fourth grade and beyond by 
reading proficiently by the end of third grade.  

 

R#8-ELH demographic information (below) 

The Berrien Regional Education Service Agency (Berrien RESA) is a member of the 
R#8-ELH and is serving as the RFP coordinator for the grant. 

 



Appendix #4:  Region #8 Demographic and Risk Data (072321)

Kids Count
Risk Category

Michigan Berrien Branch Cass Calhoun Kalamazoo St. Joseph Van Buren

Total Population 9,986,857 -- 153,401 -- 43,517 51,787 --- 134,159 265,066 60,964 75,677 ---

Total Child Population (ages 0-17) 2,143,933 21.5% 33,136 21.6 9,996 10,663 --- 30,361 56,890 14,711 17,481 ---

Children (ages 0-5) 683,798 31.9% 10,540 31.8% * 3,170 31.7% 3,136 29.4% 9781 32.2% 18,775 33% 4689 31.8% 5,496 31.4%

Hispanic (ages 0-17) 182,284 8.5% 3269 9.9% 876 9% 868 8.1% 2491 0.82% 4882 9% 2194 15% 3,397 19.4%

African American (ages 0-17) 386,454 18% 7142 21.6% 153 2% 875 8.2% 5255 17.3% 10,493 18% 737 5% 925 5.3%

American Indian (ages 0-17) 17,394 0.8% 241 0.7% 57 0.5% 162 1.5% 233 0.8% 270 .4% 76 .05% 141 0.8%

Asian/Pacific Islander (ages 0-17) 81,168 3.8% 744 2.3% 85 0.5% 79 0.7% 1149 0.04% 1618 3% 94 .06% 152 0.9%

White (ages 0-17) 1,476,633 68.9% 21,740 65.6% 8825 88% 8,679 81.4% 21,233 69.9% 39,627 70% 11,610 79% 12,866 73.6%

Children in Poverty (ages 0-17) 367,411 17.5% 7,219 22.3% 1717 17.6% 2,077 19.9% 5946 20.3% 7556 13.6% 2306 37.6% 4,435 23.4%

3rd graders NOT proficient in ELA -- 54.9% -- 56.5% ** -- 65.2% --- 53.7% --- 66.1% ---- 54.3% 263 20.1% 54.6%

Birth to teens (ages 15-19) 5,036 15.7^ 113 24.5^ 25.1^ 35 21.9^ 103 50.6 ^ 163 17.8^ 3 1.6^ 55 24.1 ^

Confirmed victims of CA/N (ages 0-17) 27,894 13^ 479 14.5^ 207 20.7^ 150 14.1^ 707 34.7^ 1179 20.7^ 269 15.9^ 257 14.7 ^

Children in out-of-home care (ages 0-17) 10,023 4.7^ 217 6.5^ 67 6.7^ 98 9.2^ 250 37.6^ 397 7.0^ 143 6.6^ 108 6.2 ^

Living in high poverty areas (ages 0-17) 289,904 13.6% 6,714 20.3% - - 0 0.0% 6093 20.4% 4783 8.6% 821 5.7% 0 0%

English not spoken at home (ages 5-17) 170,556 10.6% 1,747 7.0% 831 11.2% 238 2.9% 1707 7.6% 2805 6.8% 1693 15.4% 1,639 12.5%

2018-2019 M-STEP
3rd Grade Content: English (ELA)
Percentage Proficient*** by Category

Michigan Berrien RESA Branch ISD
Heritage

Southwest ISD
Calhoun ISD Kalamazoo RESA St. Joseph ISD Van Buren ISD

All Students 45.5% 42% 34.7% 46% 35.1% 45.7% 38.1% 45.1%

Economically Disadvantaged Students 31.3% 30% 28.4 33.9% 26.7% 29.4% 28.1% 31.9%

English Learners 33.3% 39.8% 14.9% 33.9% 26.7% 37.6% 28.4% 21.5%

Race: White 52.8% 52.2% 38.1% 51% 41.6% 57.1% 41.5% 52.8%

Race: 2 or More 44% 44.4% --- 41.5% 24.7% 42.7% 18.8% 44.4%

Race: Hispanic Any Race 34.1% 19.6% 14% 30% 25% 38.6% 25.3% 25.1%

Race: Black or African American 19.9% 11.4% --- 20.8% 12.2% 16.1% 29.2% 21.4%

Race: Asian 64.6% 71.4% --- --- 50.9% 73.1% --- ---



*Calculation of % Children Ages 0-5: From Kid’s Count, % is calculated based on Children ages 0-5 divided by Total Child Population ages 0-17

** 3rd graders NOT proficient in ELA:  Subtract % proficient from 100%

***Combined Students Scoring Proficient and Advanced

^ Rate per 1000
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